# Oracle® Communications Network Integrity

Licensing Information User Manual Release 7.3.6 **E97653-01** 

August 2018



Copyright © 2000, 2018, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or de-compilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this is software or related documentation that is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Xeon are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Opteron, the AMD logo, and the AMD Opteron logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

# **Contents**

Introduction	1
Licensing Information	2
Third-Party Notices and/or Licenses	8
Commercial Software	8
Open Source or Other Separately Licensed Software	8
Third-Party Licenses	13
Apache License, Version 2.0	
Cisco License	15
Common Development and Distribution License 1.0	
CPAN License	
JacORB License	22
JCraft License	27
The Internet Society License	28

### Introduction

This Licensing Information document is a part of the product or program documentation under the terms of your Oracle license agreement and is intended to help you understand the program editions, entitlements, restrictions, prerequisites, special license rights, and/or separately licensed third party technology terms associated with the Oracle software program(s) covered by this document (the "Program(s)"). Entitled or restricted use products or components identified in this document that are not provided with the particular Program may be obtained from the Oracle Software Delivery Cloud website (https://edelivery.oracle.com) or from media Oracle may provide. If you have a question about your license rights and obligations, please contact your Oracle sales representative, review the information provided in Oracle's Software Investment Guide (http://www.oracle.com/us/corporate/pricing/softwareinvestment-guide/index.html), and/or contact the applicable Oracle License Management Services representative listed on http://www.oracle.com/us/corporate/license-management-services/index.html.

# **Licensing Information**

Product	Subproduct	Licensing Description
Oracle Communications Network Integrity	Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager	Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager gives you the ability to:  • Create, schedule, run, and manage discovery scans (including blackout windows); browse and manage scan results, including historical data about successful and failed scans; access the discovered data via the GUI or through programmatic interfaces.  • Add generally available Cartridges from Oracle (such as the MIB2 RFC1213 SNMP cartridge and the TMF814 cartridge) to the scan. Note that each cartridge must be individually licensed.  • Use Abstract CLI cartridge to discover device information using command line interface of the device  • Use the Network Integrity Plugin for Oracle Communications Design Studio to build new discovery cartridges and extend the data modeling of the discovery results. The Developer's Guide includes instructions about how to do this. Note that Oracle Communications Design Studio is a separately licensed product.  • Use the Oracle Communications Network Integrity Software Developer Kit and its documentation.  • Use the provided Oracle BI Publisher template reports. Note that using the report templates is optional; if used they require Oracle BI Publisher which is a separately licensed product.  Inclusions:  • Oracle Enterprise Scheduler: Oracle Communications Network Integrity customers are granted the restricted free license for Oracle Enterprise Scheduler. This license includes the ability to schedule and manage Network Integrity application only (as outlined in Licensing Notes above). Any use of this component outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity propriate licenses from Oracle.  Prerequisites:  • Oracle Database (Oracle RDBMS) Enterprise Edition  • Oracle Oracle Oracle Server Enterprise Edition  • Oracle Oracle Oracle Network Integrity December 1. D
Oracle Communications Network Integrity	Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Reconciliation Manager	The Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Reconciliation Manager includes the ability to:

Product	Subproduct	Licensing Description
		Create, schedule, run, and manage discrepancy detection scans (including blackout windows) to compare data from two different sources and create discrepancies based on rules defined in cartridges. Typically the two data sources are the discovered network (using the discovered results from Network Integrity Discovery Manager) and a network operator's inventory system, but any two data sources can be compared such as Billing, Customer Relationship Management, or two inventory systems.
		<ul> <li>Access the comparison results via the GUI or through programmatic interfaces; correct one data source (where applicable) or trigger the publishing of an event.</li> </ul>
		Use the Oracle Communications Network Integrity Software Developer Kit and documentation
		<ul> <li>Use the Network Integrity Plugin for Oracle Communications Design Studio to build new reconciliation cartridges. The Developer's Guide includes instructions about how to do this. Note that Oracle Communications Design Studio is a separately licensed product.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Use the provided Oracle BI Publisher template reports.</li> <li>Note that using the report templates is optional; Oracle BI Publisher is a separately licensed product.</li> </ul>
		Use the Reference Integration with Oracle Communications UIM; this includes the ability to:
		Use and extend the reference integration with Oracle Communications Unified Inventory Management (UIM) for importing inventory data and resolving discrepancies. This reference is based upon the Cartridge for MIB-II SNMP or Cartridge for Cisco Router and Switch SNMP, or the Cartridge for TMF814 CORBA, one of which is required for full out- of-the-box functionality.
		Prerequisites for Unified Inventory Management (UIM) Integration Cartridge:
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Unified Inventory Management (UIM)</li> </ul>
		Optional Prerequisites for Unified Inventory Management (UIM) Integration Cartridge:
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Cartridge for MIB-II SNMP</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Cartridge for Cisco Router and Switch SNMP</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Cartridge for TMF814 CORBA</li> </ul>
		Use the Reference integration with Oracle Communications MetaSolv Solution (MSS), which includes the ability to:
		O Use the reference cartridge for integrating Network Integrity with Oracle Communications MetaSolv Solution (MSS). The cartridge can be extended and compiled using Oracle Communications Design Studio to create a deployable cartridge for Network Integrity.
		<ul> <li>Import data from a MetaSolv Solution (MSS) instance via prescribed methods in the Network Integrity MSS Integration Cartridge Guide.</li> </ul>

Product	Subproduct	Licensing Description
		<ul> <li>Resolve discrepancies for devices and circuits into MetaSolv Solution (MSS), subject to limits documented in the Network Integrity MSS Integration Cartridge Guide.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Use the TMF814 model for integration; changing the model, or not having the cartridge for TMF814 CORBA, will require extensibility.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Resolve discrepancies into MetaSolv Solution (MSS), requiring the Oracle Communication Network Integrity Cartridge for CORBA.</li> </ul>
		Prerequisites for MetaSolv Solution (MSS) Cartridge:
		Oracle Communications MetaSolv Solution (MSS)
		Optional Prerequisites for MetaSolv Solution (MSS) Integration Cartridge:
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Assimilation Manager</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Cartridge for CORBA</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Cartridge for Optical Assimilation</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Cartridge for TMF814 CORBA</li> </ul>
		Inclusions:
		Oracle Enterprise Scheduler: Oracle Communications Network Integrity customers are granted the restricted free license for Oracle Enterprise Scheduler. This license includes the ability to schedule and manage Network Integrity jobs for the discovery, reconciliation, assimilation or resolution of data controlled from within the Network Integrity application only (as outlined in Licensing Notes above). Any use of this component outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity requires the purchase of the appropriate licenses from Oracle.
		Prerequisites:
		Oracle Database (Oracle RDBMS) Enterprise Edition
		Oracle WebLogic Server Enterprise Edition
		Oracle Communications Design Studio
		Oracle BI Publisher (if you would like to use the optional template discovery reports provided with Network Integrity)
Oracle Communications	Oracle Communications	The Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Assimilation Manager includes the ability to:
Network Integrity	Network Integrity, Assimilation Manager	Use data from multiple scans or sources to deduce other information and create records of Assimilated data (for example, use port allocation data from two discovery scans to determine circuits that exist between those ports).
		<ul> <li>Add generally available cartridges from Oracle as they become available (may be subject to additional licensing).</li> </ul>
		Use and extend the Cartridge for Optical Assimilation as a reference for the creation of data relating to SDH circuits discovered from TMF814, or other sources. This reference is based upon the Cartridge for TMF814, which is required for full out-of-the-box functionality.

Product	Subproduct	Licensing Description
		Use the Network Integrity Plugin for Oracle     Communications Design Studio to build new assimilation     cartridges. The Developer's Guide includes instructions     about how to do this. Note that Oracle Communications     Design Studio is a separately licensed product.
		Inclusions:
		Oracle Enterprise Scheduler: Oracle Communications Network Integrity customers are granted the restricted free license for Oracle Enterprise Scheduler. This license includes the ability to schedule and manage Network Integrity jobs for the discovery, reconciliation, assimilation or resolution of data controlled from within the Network Integrity application only (as outlined in Licensing Notes above). Any use of this component outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity requires the purchase of the appropriate licenses from Oracle.
		Prerequisites:
		Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager
Oracle	Oracle	This cartridge provides:
Communications Network Integrity	Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for MIB-II SNMP Cartridges	<ul> <li>The ability to discover network element (NE) information (such as IP address, name, and logical interfaces) from an NE that supports MIB II using a pre-configured SNMP poll profile.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Pre-configured modeling and publishing of the discovered results from the poll list.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The ability to extend the cartridge by configuring a new SNMP poll profile to discover from an SNMP MIB (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).</li> </ul>
		Prerequisites:
		Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager
Oracle	Oracle	This cartridge provides:
Communications Network Integrity	Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for Cisco Router and Switch SNMP	The ability to discover network element (NE) information from a Cisco router or switch using a pre-configured SNMP poll profile based on the SNMP MIBs that Cisco typically supports. This SNMP poll profile discovers significantly more information than the MIB-II SNMP Cartridge poll profile including detailed physical NE information (such as shelves, slots, sub-slots, and cards).
		<ul> <li>Pre-configured modeling and publishing of the discovered results from the poll list.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The ability to extend the cartridge by adding to the SNMP poll profile (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).</li> </ul>
		Prerequisites:
		Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager
Oracle	Oracle	This cartridge provides:
Communications Network Integrity	Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for TMF814 CORBA	The ability to discover device information on managed elements (ME) from one or more TMF814-compliant systems using a pre-configured CORBA poll profile.

Product	Subproduct	Licensing Description
		Pre-configured modeling and publishing of the discovered results from the poll list.  The ability to add support for new CORBA calls (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).  The ability to create reconciliation and resolution actions through Oracle Communications Design Studio (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).  Prerequisites:  Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager
Oracle Communications Network Integrity	Oracle Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for File Transfer and Parsing	This cartridge provides:  The ability to retrieve information, in a known file format, from systems using FTP, SFTP, or from local server directories.  The ability to parse ASCII-Delimited and XML files and to extend the parser processors through Oracle Communications Design Studio (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).  Reference cartridges for ASCII and XML parsing.  The ability to extend the cartridge by adding a custom parsing processor through Oracle Communications Design Studio (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).  The ability to create reconciliation and resolution actions through Oracle Communications Design Studio (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).  Prerequisites:  Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager
Oracle Communications Network Integrity	Oracle Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for CORBA	An abstract cartridge for creating a deployable cartridge that uses the CORBA protocol for communication. The cartridge is extended and compiled using Oracle Communications Design Studio to create a deployable cartridge for Network Integrity.      The ability to build and extend the cartridge by modifying and adding to the framework (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).  Prerequisites:      Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager
Oracle Communications Network Integrity	Oracle Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for TL1	An abstract cartridge for creating a deployable cartridge that uses the TL1 protocol for communication. The cartridge is extended and compiled using Oracle Communications Design Studio to create a deployable cartridge for Network Integrity.      The ability to discover device information on managed elements (ME) from one or more TL1 compliant systems either directly or via a gateway.

Product	Subproduct	Licensing Description
		<ul> <li>The ability to add support for new TL1 calls/versions (as described in the Cartridge and Developer's Guides).</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The ability to create reconciliation and resolution actions through Oracle Communications Design Studio (described in Network Integrity TL1 Cartridge Guide and Network Integrity Developer's Guide).</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Use of, and the ability to extend, the reference cartridge for Cisco ONS 15040 SONET.</li> </ul>
		Prerequisites:
		Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager

# **Third-Party Notices and/or Licenses**

### **Commercial Software**

Commercial software products or components distributed in Oracle Communications Network Integrity are identified in the following table along with the applicable licensing information.

Provider	Component(s)	Functionality	Licensing Information
Apache	Ant 1.7.1	Scheduling and Managing Network Integrity Jobs	This product is included as part of the license for Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager, Reconciliation Manager and Assimilation Manager. Any use of this component outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity requires the purchase of the appropriate licenses from Oracle.  This product is licensed under the Apache 2.0 License. For copy of the license, see Apache License
CPAN	libwww-perl	Scheduling and Managing Network Integrity Jobs	This product is included as part of the license for Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager, Reconciliation Manager and Assimilation Manager. Any use of this component outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity requires the purchase of the appropriate licenses from Oracle.  This program contains third-party code from the Comprehensive Perl Archive Network ("CPAN"). For copy of the license, see CPAN License
Zoho	SNMP API (4.0.7)	SNMP Discovery	This product is included as part of the license for Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager. Any use of this product outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity, Discovery Manager requires the purchase of the appropriate licenses from the vendor.  This product contains copyright material licensed from AdventNet, Inc. http://adventnet.com. All rights to such copyright material rest with AdventNet.
Zoho	TL1 API (4)	TL1 Discovery	This product is included as part of the license for Oracle Communications Network Integrity Cartridge for TL1. Any use of this product outside of Oracle Communications Network Integrity requires the purchase of the appropriate licenses from the vendor.  This product contains copyright material licensed from AdventNet, Inc. http://adventnet.com. All rights to such copyright material rest with AdventNet.

## **Open Source or Other Separately Licensed Software**

Required notices for open source or other separately licensed software products or components distributed in Oracle Communications Network Integrity are identified in the following table along with the applicable licensing information. Additional notices and/or licenses may be found in the included documentation or readme files of the individual third party software.

Provider	Component(s)	Functionality	Licensing Information
Apache Software Foundation	commons-logging-1.0.4.jar (1.0.4) xalan.jar (2.7.1) serializer.jar (2.7.1) xercesImpl.jar (1.3.1) axis.jar (1.4) commons-discovery-0.2.jar (0.2) org.apache.commons.beanutils_1.6.jar com.bea.core.apache.commons.c ollections_3.2.0.jar	Web Service Client	Licensed under the Apache License, Version 2.0 (the "License"); you may not use this file except in compliance with the License.  You may obtain a copy of the License at: http://www.apache.org/licenses/LICENSE-2.0.  For a copy of the license, see Apache License, Version 2.0.
	Apache Commons Net 3.6	FTP Discovery	
	Velocity Engine 2.0 SpringFramewor k 4.3.17	TL1 Discovery	
	com.springsourc e.org.apache.co mmons.logging- 1.1.1.jar org.springframew ork.asm- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar org.springframew ork.orm- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar org.springframew ork.context- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar	Install	

Provider	Component(s)	Functionality	Licensing Information
	org.springframew ork.transaction- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.beans- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.core- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.web- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.jdbc- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.expression- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.instrument- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.core- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.context- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	org.springframew ork.beans- 4.0.7.RELEASE.j ar		
	XML Beans (2.6.0)	XML Development	
	Ant 1.7.1	Used by Oracle Enterprise Scheduler	

Provider	Component(s)	Functionality	Licensing Information
Cisco	CISCO-ENTITY- VENDORTYPE- OID-MIB  CISCO-FRAME- RELAY-MIB  CISCO- PRODUCTS-MIB  CISCO-SMI  CISCO-TC  CISCO-VLAN- IFTABLE- RELATIONSHIP- MIB  CISCO-VTP-MIB  ENTITY-MIB  RMON-MIB	SNMP MIBs	All contents are Copyright © 1992-2013 Cisco and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.  For a copy of the license, see Cisco License.
CPAN	libwww-perl	Used by Oracle Enterprise Scheduler	This program contains third-party code from the Comprehensive Perl Archive Network ("CPAN"). For copy of the license, see CPAN License.
IETF, IANA	ATM-MIB ATM-TC-MIB enterprise- numbers.txt IANAifType-MIB IF-MIB RFC1155-SMI RFC1213-MIB RFC1315-MIB SNMP- FRAMEWORK- MIB SNMPv2-CONF SNMPv2-MIB SNMPv2-MIB SNMPv2-SMI SNMPv2-TC INET-ADDRESS- MIB IP-MIB	SNMP MIBs	Copyright (C) The Internet Society (1999). All Rights Reserved.  For a copy of the license, see The Internet Society License.

Provider	Component(s)	Functionality	Licensing Information
JacOR	JavaCorba JacORB v3.9	CORBA Integration	This product must be downloaded by the customer; see <a href="http://www.jacorb.org/">http://www.jacorb.org/</a>
			You are receiving a copy of a derivative work of JacOrb v3 in the MSS_idl.jar in the Network Integrity MSS Integration Cartridge. The terms of the Oracle license do NOT apply to the JacOrb v3 derivative work; it is licensed under the following license, separately from the Oracle programs you receive. If you do not wish to use the JacORB derivative work, you may extend the Network Integrity MSS Integration Cartridge to use a different ORB.
			GNU LESSER GENERAL PUBLIC LICENSE Version 2.1, February 1999 Copyright (C) 1991, 1999 Free Software Foundation, Inc. 59 Temple Place, Suite 330, Boston, MA 02111- 1307 USA
			For a copy of the license, see <u>JacORB</u> <u>License</u> .
JCraft	JSch (0.1.54)	SSH Security	Copyright (c) 2002-2012 Atsuhiko Yamanaka, JCraft, Inc.
			All rights reserved.  For a copy of this license, see JCraft License.
Oracle (Bundle Vendor) & JCP (Implementat ion Vendor)	jaxrpc.jar 1.1 (Specification Version)	Webservice client	Licensed under the Apache License, Version 2.0 and the Common Development and Distribution License CDDL-1.0.  For a copy of these licenses, see Apache License, Version 2.0 and Common Development and Distribution License 1.0.

# **Third-Party Licenses**

### **Apache License, Version 2.0**

The following applies to all products licensed under the Apache 2.0 License:

You may not use the identified files except in compliance with the Apache License, Version 2.0 (the "License").

You may obtain a copy of the License at http://www.apache.org/licenses/LICENSE-2.0.

Unless/ required by applicable law or agreed to in writing, software distributed under the License is distributed on an "AS IS" BASIS, WITHOUT WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF ANY KIND, either express or implied.

See the License for the specific language governing permissions and limitations under the License.

Apache License Version 2.0, January 2004 http://www.apache.org/licenses/

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR USE, REPRODUCTION, AND DISTRIBUTION

#### Definitions.

"License" shall mean the terms and conditions for use, reproduction, and distribution as defined by Sections 1 through 9 of this document.

"Licensor" shall mean the copyright owner or entity authorized by the copyright owner that is granting the License.

"Legal Entity" shall mean the union of the acting entity and all other entities that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with that entity. For the purposes of this definition, "control" means (i) the power, direct or indirect, to cause the direction or management of such entity, whether by contract or otherwise, or (ii) ownership of fifty percent (50%) or more of the outstanding shares, or (iii) beneficial ownership of such entity.

"You" (or "Your") shall mean an individual or Legal Entity exercising permissions granted by this License.

"Source" form shall mean the preferred form for making modifications, including but not limited to software source code, documentation source, and configuration files.

"Object" form shall mean any form resulting from mechanical transformation or translation of a Source form, including but not limited to compiled object code, generated documentation, and conversions to other media types.

"Work" shall mean the work of authorship, whether in Source or Object form, made available under the License, as indicated by a copyright notice that is included in or attached to the work (an example is provided in the Appendix below).

"Derivative Works" shall mean any work, whether in Source or Object form, that is based on (or derived from) the Work and for which the editorial revisions, annotations, elaborations, or other modifications represent, as a whole, an original work of authorship. For the purposes of this License, Derivative Works shall not include works that remain separable from, or merely link (or bind by name) to the interfaces of, the Work and Derivative Works thereof.

"Contribution" shall mean any work of authorship, including the original version of the Work and any modifications or additions to that Work or Derivative Works thereof, that is intentionally submitted to Licensor for inclusion in the Work by the copyright owner or by an individual or Legal Entity authorized to submit on behalf of the copyright owner. For the purposes of this definition, "submitted" means any form of electronic, verbal, or written communication sent to the Licensor or its representatives, including but not limited to communication on electronic mailing lists, source code control systems, and issue tracking systems that are managed by, or on behalf of, the Licensor for the purpose of discussing and improving the Work, but excluding communication that is conspicuously marked or otherwise designated in writing by the copyright owner as "Not a Contribution."

- "Contributor" shall mean Licensor and any individual or Legal Entity on behalf of whom a Contribution has been received by Licensor and subsequently incorporated within the Work.
- 2. Grant of Copyright License. Subject to the terms and conditions of this License, each Contributor hereby grants to You a perpetual, worldwide, non-exclusive, no-charge, royalty-free, irrevocable copyright license to reproduce, prepare Derivative Works of, publicly display, publicly perform, sublicense, and distribute the Work and such Derivative Works in Source or Object form.
- 3. Grant of Patent License. Subject to the terms and conditions of this License, each Contributor hereby grants to You a perpetual, worldwide, non-exclusive, no-charge, royalty-free, irrevocable (except as stated in this section) patent license to make, have made, use, offer to sell, sell, import, and otherwise transfer the Work, where such license applies only to those patent claims licensable by such Contributor that are necessarily infringed by their Contribution(s) alone or by combination of their Contribution(s) with the Work to which such Contribution(s) was submitted. If You institute patent litigation against any entity (including a cross-claim or counterclaim in a lawsuit) alleging that the Work or a Contribution incorporated within the Work constitutes direct or contributory patent infringement, then any patent licenses granted to You under this License for that Work shall terminate as of the date such litigation is filed.
- 4. Redistribution. You may reproduce and distribute copies of the Work or Derivative Works thereof in any medium, with or without modifications, and in Source or Object form, provided that You meet the following conditions:
  - a. You must give any other recipients of the Work or Derivative Works a copy of this License;
  - b. You must cause any modified files to carry prominent notices stating that You changed the files; and
  - You must retain, in the Source form of any Derivative Works that You distribute, all copyright, patent, trademark, and attribution notices from the Source form of the Work, excluding those notices that do not pertain to any part of the Derivative Works; and
  - If the Work includes a "NOTICE" text file as part of its distribution, then any Derivative Works that You distribute must include a readable copy of the attribution notices contained within such NOTICE file, excluding those notices that do not pertain to any part of the Derivative Works, in at least one of the following places: within a NOTICE text file distributed as part of the Derivative Works; within the Source form or documentation, if provided along with the Derivative Works; or, within a display generated by the Derivative Works, if and wherever such third-party notices normally appear. The contents of the NOTICE file are for informational purposes only and do not modify the License. You may add Your own attribution notices within Derivative Works that You distribute, alongside or as an addendum to the NOTICE text from the Work, provided that such additional attribution notices cannot be construed as modifying the License.

You may add Your own copyright statement to Your modifications and may provide additional or different license terms and conditions for use, reproduction, or distribution of Your modifications, or for any such Derivative Works as a whole, provided Your use, reproduction, and distribution of the Work otherwise complies with the conditions stated in this License.

- 5. Submission of Contributions. Unless You explicitly state otherwise, any Contribution intentionally submitted for inclusion in the Work by You to the Licensor shall be under the terms and conditions of this License, without any additional terms or conditions. Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall supersede or modify the terms of any separate license agreement you may have executed with Licensor regarding such Contributions.
- 6. Trademarks. This License does not grant permission to use the trade names, trademarks, service marks, or product names of the Licensor, except as required for reasonable and customary use in describing the origin of the Work and reproducing the content of the NOTICE file.

- 7. **Disclaimer of Warranty**. Unless required by applicable law or agreed to in writing. Licensor provides the Work (and each Contributor provides its Contributions) on an "AS IS" BASIS, WITHOUT WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF ANY KIND, either express or implied, including, without limitation, any warranties or conditions of TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY, or FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. You are solely responsible for determining the appropriateness of using or redistributing the Work and assume any risks associated with Your exercise of permissions under this License.
- 8. Limitation of Liability. In no event and under no legal theory, whether in tort (including negligence), contract, or otherwise, unless required by applicable law (such as deliberate and grossly negligent acts) or agreed to in writing, shall any Contributor be liable to You for damages, including any direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages of any character arising as a result of this License or out of the use or inability to use the Work (including but not limited to damages for loss of goodwill, work stoppage, computer failure or malfunction, or any and all other commercial damages or losses), even if such Contributor has been advised of the possibility of such damages.
- 9. Accepting Warranty or Additional Liability. While redistributing the Work or Derivative Works thereof, You may choose to offer, and charge a fee for, acceptance of support, warranty, indemnity, or other liability obligations and/or rights consistent with this License. However, in accepting such obligations, You may act only on Your own behalf and on Your sole responsibility, not on behalf of any other Contributor, and only if You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold each Contributor harmless for any liability incurred by, or claims asserted against, such Contributor by reason of your accepting any such warranty or additional liability.

END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### Cisco License

All contents are Copyright @ 1992-2013 Cisco and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

No portion of this service may be reproduced in any form, or by any means, without prior written permission from Cisco and/or its affiliates.

1. Rules and Regulations.

The following rules and regulations apply to all visitors to or users of this Web Site. By accessing this Web Site, user acknowledges acceptance of these terms and conditions. Cisco reserves the right to change these rules and regulations from time to time at its sole discretion. In the case of any violation of these rules and regulations, Cisco reserves the right to seek all remedies available by law and in equity for such violations. These rules and regulations apply to all visits to the Cisco Web Site, both now and in the future.

2. Limited License.

Cisco hereby authorizes you to copy materials published by Cisco on this Web Site solely for noncommercial use within your organization (or if you are a Cisco Partner, your customer's organization) in support of Cisco products. No other use of the information is authorized. In consideration of this authorization, you agree that any copy of these materials which you make shall retain all copyright and other proprietary notices in the same form and manner as on the original. Except as specified above, nothing contained herein shall be construed as conferring by implication, estoppel or otherwise any license or right under any patent, trademark or copyright of Cisco or any third party. ALL CONTENTS ON THIS SITE ARE PROTECTED BY COPYRIGHT. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PERMITTED HEREIN, NO PORTION OF THE INFORMATION ON THIS WEB SITE MAY BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, OR BY ANY MEANS, WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM CISCO. VISITORS OR USERS ARE NOT PERMITTED TO MODIFY, DISTRIBUTE, PUBLISH, TRANSMIT OR CREATE DERIVATIVE WORKS OF ANY MATERIAL FOUND ON THIS SITE FOR ANY PUBLIC OR COMMERCIAL PURPOSES.

3. Compliance With Applicable Laws; Export Control Laws.

User access to this Web Site is governed by all applicable federal, state and local laws. All information available on the Web Site is subject to U.S. export control laws and may also be subject to the laws of the country where you reside.

All Cisco products and publications are commercial in nature. Use duplication, or disclosure by the United States Government is subject to the restrictions set forth in DFARS 252.227-7015 and FAR 52.227-19.

#### 4. Trademarks.

The trademarks, logos and service marks ("Marks") displayed on this Web Site are the property of Cisco or other third parties. Users are not permitted to use these Marks without the prior written consent of Cisco or such third party which may own the Mark. "Cisco" is a registered trademark of Cisco and/or its affiliates.

Please see the complete list of Cisco Trademarks.

#### 5. General Disclaimer.

Although Cisco has attempted to provide accurate information on the Web Site, Cisco assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the information. Cisco may change the programs or products mentioned at any time without notice. Mention of non-Cisco products or services is for information purposes only and constitutes neither an endorsement nor a recommendation. ALL INFORMATION PROVIDED ON THIS WEB SITE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" WITH ALL FAULTS WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED. CISCO AND ITS SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT OR ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE.

CISCO AND ITS SUPPLIERS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES, COSTS OF REPLACEMENT GOODS, LOSS OR DAMAGE TO DATA ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THIS SITE OR ANY CISCO PRODUCT. DAMAGES RESULTING FROM USE OF OR RELIANCE ON THE INFORMATION PRESENT, EVEN IF CISCO OR ITS SUPPLIERS HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

#### 6. Disclosure; Forward-Looking Statements.

Some of the information on this Web Site may contain projections or other forward-looking statements regarding future events or the future financial performance of the Company. We wish to caution you that these statements are only predictions and that actual events or results may differ materially. We refer you to the documents the Company files from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, specifically, the Company's most recent Form 10-K, Form 10-Q, and Form 10-Q/A. These documents contain and identify important factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained in our projections or forward-looking statements, including, among others, potential fluctuations in quarterly results, dependence on new product development; rapid technological and market change, acquisition strategy, manufacturing risks, risks associated with Internet infrastructure, volatility of stock price, financial risk management, and future growth subject to risks.

#### 7. Cookies

A cookie is a small data file that certain Web sites write to your hard drive when you visit them. A cookie file can contain information such as a user ID that the site uses to track the pages you've visited, but the only personal information a cookie can contain is information you supply yourself. A cookie can't read data off your hard disk or read cookie files created by other sites. Some parts of CCO use cookies to track user traffic patterns. We do this in order to determine the usefulness of CCO information to our users and to see how effective our navigational structure is in helping users reach that information. Cisco Systems does not correlate this information with data about individual users, nor does it share this information or sell it to any third party.

If you prefer not to receive cookies on CCO, you can set your browser to warn you before accepting cookies and refuse the cookie when your browser alerts you to its presence. You can also refuse all cookies by turning them off in your browser. You do not need to have cookies turned on to use any area of CCO.

#### 8. Products and Services Availability.

Because international information is provided at this Web Site, not all products or programs mentioned will be available in your country. Please contact your local sales representative for information as to products and services available in your country.

#### 9. Links to Third Party Sites.

This Web Site may contain links to third party sites. Access to any other Internet site linked to this Web Site is at the user's own risk and Cisco is not responsible for the accuracy or reliability of any information, data, opinions, advice or statements made on these sites. Cisco provides these links merely as a convenience and the inclusion of such links does not imply an endorsement.

#### 10. Acceptable Use.

Access to and use of password protected and/or secure areas of the Web Site are restricted to authorized users only. Unauthorized individuals attempting to access these areas of the Web Site, or individuals/users attempting to access areas of the Web Site that they do not have rights of access to, may be subject to prosecution. You agree that you will not use the Web Site (a) in furtherance of or with intent to commit any fraudulent or other illegal activities, or otherwise in violation of any applicable law, regulation, legal agreement or Cisco's published policies; or (b) in a manner that is abusive of Cisco programs or other information on the Web Site.

#### 11. Member Account, Password and Security.

Where you have created an account in the Web Site, you confirm that the account information you have provided is truthful and accurate. You must keep your account password and information confidential and not share it with any other person. If you lose your password or become aware of access to your account other than by you, you agree to notify Cisco immediately. If you become aware of or should reasonably know about use of your password or account by any person other than you, and if you do not notify Cisco immediately of such use, you will be responsible for any and all liability incurred by Cisco or any other user of this Web Site due to unauthorized use. If Cisco believes that your account has been compromised, Cisco may require you to update your password. Further, Cisco may suspend or limit the use of your account, refuse to provide services, and/or place a hold on any transactions. In the event Cisco reasonably believes that your actions affect other users or third parties. Cisco may warn such other users or third parties, including law enforcement. Cisco may also investigate any perceived misuse of your account, refer matters to law enforcement, and/or take other legal action.

#### 12. Software License Agreement.

Any software which you download is governed in accordance with (i) the license terms accompanying the file or (ii) if no license terms accompany the file, the terms of the license agreement which accompanied the original product licensed by you which you are updating or (iii) the license terms pursuant to this End User License Agreement.

#### 13. Copyright Policy/DMCA.

You may not post, modify, distribute, or reproduce in any way copyrighted or other proprietary materials without obtaining the prior written consent of the copyright owner of such materials. We may terminate an account, deny access to a site or service, or terminate any user who is alleged to have infringed the copyright or proprietary rights of another.

Without limiting the foregoing, if you believe that your copyright or other rights have been infringed, please provide our Designated Agent written notice with the following information:

An electronic or physical signature of the person authorized to act on behalf of the owner of the copyright or other interest

- A description of the copyrighted work or other work that you claim has been infringed
- A description of where the material that you claim is infringing is located on our sites, networks or other repositories
- Your address, telephone number, and email address
- A written statement by you that you have a good faith belief that the disputed use is not authorized by the copyright owner, its agent, or the law
- A statement by you, made under penalty of perjury, that the above information in your notice is accurate and that you are the copyright owner or authorized to act on the copyright owner's behalf

Our Designated Agent for notice of claims of copyright infringement can be reached as follows:

Office of General Counsel Cisco Systems, Inc. 170 West Tasman Drive San Jose, CA 95134 Attn: Copyright Agent

Email: DMCAagent@cisco.com

If the disputed materials were posted by a third party identifiable through reasonable efforts, we will provide reasonable notice to the third party of the charge. If the third party responds with a valid counter-notification, we will provide you with a copy so that you may take any other steps you may consider appropriate

#### 14. Open Source License Notices

Cisco Small Business Products may contain software from the open source community that must be licensed under the specific license terms applicable to such software. For more information, please see http://www.cisco.com/go/osln/.

### Common Development and Distribution License 1.0

Licensed under the Apache License, Version 2.0 (see license above) and the CDDL-1.0 shown below COMMON DEVELOPMENT AND DISTRIBUTION LICENSE (CDDL) Version 1.0

- Definitions.
  - 1.1. "Contributor" means each individual or entity that creates or contributes to the creation of Modifications.
  - 1.2. "Contributor Version" means the combination of the Original Software, prior Modifications used by a Contributor (if any), and the Modifications made by that particular Contributor.
  - 1.3. "Covered Software" means (a) the Original Software, or (b) Modifications, or (c) the combination of files containing Original Software with files containing Modifications, in each case including portions thereof.
  - 1.4. "Executable" means the Covered Software in any form other than Source Code.
  - 1.5. "Initial Developer" means the individual or entity that first makes Original Software available under this License.
  - 1.6. "Larger Work" means a work which combines Covered Software or portions thereof with code not governed by the terms of this License.
  - 1.7. "License" means this document.
  - 1.8. "Licensable" means having the right to grant, to the maximum extent possible, whether at the time of the initial grant or subsequently acquired, any and all of the rights conveyed herein.
  - 1.9. "Modifications" means the Source Code and Executable form of any of the following: A. Any file that results from an addition to, deletion from or modification of the contents of a file containing Original Software or previous Modifications; B. Any new file that contains any part of the Original Software or previous Modification; or C. Any new file that is contributed or otherwise made available under the terms of this License.
  - 1.10. "Original Software" means the Source Code and Executable form of computer software code that is originally released under this License.

- 1.11. "Patent Claims" means any patent claim(s), now owned or hereafter acquired, including without limitation, method, process, and apparatus claims, in any patent Licensable by grantor.
- 1.12. "Source Code" means (a) the common form of computer software code in which modifications are made and (b) associated documentation included in or with such code.
- 1.13. "You" (or "Your") means an individual or a legal entity exercising rights under, and complying with all of the terms of, this License. For legal entities, "You" includes any entity which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with You. For purposes of this definition, "control" means (a) the power, direct or indirect, to cause the direction or management of such entity, whether by contract or otherwise, or (b) ownership of more than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding shares or beneficial ownership of such entity.

#### 2. License Grants.

- 2.1. The Initial Developer Grant. Conditioned upon Your compliance with Section 3.1 below and subject to third party intellectual property claims, the Initial Developer hereby grants You a worldwide, royalty-free, non-exclusive license: (a) under intellectual property rights (other than patent or trademark) Licensable by Initial Developer, to use, reproduce, modify, display, perform, sublicense and distribute the Original Software (or portions thereof), with or without Modifications, and/or as part of a Larger Work; and (b) under Patent Claims infringed by the making, using or selling of Original Software, to make, have made, use, practice, sell, and offer for sale, and/or otherwise dispose of the Original Software (or portions thereof), (c) The licenses granted in Sections 2.1(a) and (b) are effective on the date Initial Developer first distributes or otherwise makes the Original Software available to a third party under the terms of this License. (d) Notwithstanding Section 2.1(b) above, no patent license is granted: (1) for code that You delete from the Original Software, or (2) for infringements caused by: (i) the modification of the Original Software, or (ii) the combination of the Original Software with other software or devices.
- 2.2. Contributor Grant, Conditioned upon Your compliance with Section 3.1 below and subject to third party intellectual property claims, each Contributor hereby grants You a world-wide, royalty-free, nonexclusive license: (a) under intellectual property rights (other than patent or trademark) Licensable by Contributor to use, reproduce, modify, display, perform, sublicense and distribute the Modifications created by such Contributor (or portions thereof), either on an unmodified basis, with other Modifications, as Covered Software and/or as part of a Larger Work; and (b) under Patent Claims infringed by the making, using, or selling of Modifications made by that Contributor either alone and/or in combination with its Contributor Version (or portions of such combination), to make, use, sell, offer for sale, have made, and/or otherwise dispose of: (1) Modifications made by that Contributor (or portions thereof); and (2) the combination of Modifications made by that Contributor with its Contributor Version (or portions of such combination). (c) The licenses granted in Sections 2.2(a) and 2.2(b) are effective on the date Contributor first distributes or otherwise makes the Modifications available to a third party. (d) Notwithstanding Section 2.2(b) above, no patent license is granted: (1) for any code that Contributor has deleted from the Contributor Version; (2) for infringements caused by: (i) third party modifications of Contributor Version, or (ii) the combination of Modifications made by that Contributor with other software (except as part of the Contributor Version) or other devices; or (3) under Patent Claims infringed by Covered Software in the absence of Modifications made by that Contributor.

#### 3. Distribution Obligations.

- 3.1. Availability of Source Code. Any Covered Software that You distribute or otherwise make available in Executable form must also be made available in Source Code form and that Source Code form must be distributed only under the terms of this License. You must include a copy of this License with every copy of the Source Code form of the Covered Software You distribute or otherwise make available. You must inform recipients of any such Covered Software in Executable form as to how they can obtain such Covered Software in Source Code form in a reasonable manner on or through a medium customarily used for software exchange.
- 3.2. Modifications. The Modifications that You create or to which You contribute are governed by the terms of this License. You represent that You believe Your Modifications are Your original creation(s) and/or You have sufficient rights to grant the rights conveyed by this License.

- 3.3. Required Notices. You must include a notice in each of Your Modifications that identifies You as the Contributor of the Modification. You may not remove or alter any copyright, patent or trademark notices contained within the Covered Software, or any notices of licensing or any descriptive text giving attribution to any Contributor or the Initial Developer.
- 3.4. Application of Additional Terms. You may not offer or impose any terms on any Covered Software in Source Code form that alters or restricts the applicable version of this License or the recipients' rights hereunder. You may choose to offer, and to charge a fee for, warranty, support, indemnity or liability obligations to one or more recipients of Covered Software. However, you may do so only on Your own behalf, and not on behalf of the Initial Developer or any Contributor. You must make it absolutely clear that any such warranty, support, indemnity or liability obligation is offered by You alone, and You hereby agree to indemnify the Initial Developer and every Contributor for any liability incurred by the Initial Developer or such Contributor as a result of warranty, support, indemnity or liability terms You offer.
- 3.5. Distribution of Executable Versions. You may distribute the Executable form of the Covered Software under the terms of this License or under the terms of a license of Your choice, which may contain terms different from this License, provided that You are in compliance with the terms of this License and that the license for the Executable form does not attempt to limit or alter the recipient's rights in the Source Code form from the rights set forth in this License. If You distribute the Covered Software in Executable form under a different license, You must make it absolutely clear that any terms which differ from this License are offered by You alone, not by the Initial Developer or Contributor. You hereby agree to indemnify the Initial Developer and every Contributor for any liability incurred by the Initial Developer or such Contributor as a result of any such terms You offer. 3.6. Larger Works. You may create a Larger Work by combining Covered Software with other code not governed by the terms of this License and distribute the Larger Work as a single product. In such a case, You must make sure the requirements of this License are fulfilled for the Covered Software.

#### Versions of the License.

- 4.1. New Versions. Sun Microsystems, Inc. is the initial license steward and may publish revised and/or new versions of this License from time to time. Each version will be given a distinguishing version number. Except as provided in Section 4.3, no one other than the license steward has the right to modify this License.
- 4.2. Effect of New Versions. You may always continue to use, distribute or otherwise make the Covered Software available under the terms of the version of the License under which You originally received the Covered Software. If the Initial Developer includes a notice in the Original Software prohibiting it from being distributed or otherwise made available under any subsequent version of the License, You must distribute and make the Covered Software available under the terms of the version of the License under which You originally received the Covered Software, Otherwise, You may also choose to use, distribute or otherwise make the Covered Software available under the terms of any subsequent version of the License published by the license steward.
- 4.3. Modified Versions. When You are an Initial Developer and You want to create a new license for Your Original Software, You may create and use a modified version of this License if You: (a) rename the license and remove any references to the name of the license steward (except to note that the license differs from this License); and (b) otherwise make it clear that the license contains terms which differ from this License.
- DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. COVERED SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED UNDER THIS LICENSE ON. AN "AS IS" BASIS, WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES THAT THE COVERED SOFTWARE IS FREE OF DEFECTS, MERCHANTABLE, FIT FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGING. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO THE QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE OF THE COVERED SOFTWARE IS WITH YOU. SHOULD ANY COVERED SOFTWARE PROVE DEFECTIVE IN ANY RESPECT, YOU (NOT THE INITIAL DEVELOPER OR ANY OTHER CONTRIBUTOR) ASSUME THE COST OF ANY NECESSARY SERVICING. REPAIR OR CORRECTION. THIS DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY CONSTITUTES AN ESSENTIAL PART OF THIS LICENSE. NO USE OF ANY COVERED SOFTWARE IS AUTHORIZED HEREUNDER EXCEPT UNDER THIS DISCLAIMER.
- 6. TERMINATION.

- 6.1. This License and the rights granted hereunder will terminate automatically if You fail to comply with terms herein and fail to cure such breach within 30 days of becoming aware of the breach. Provisions which, by their nature, must remain in effect beyond the termination of this License shall
- 6.2. If You assert a patent infringement claim (excluding declaratory judgment actions) against Initial Developer or a Contributor (the Initial Developer or Contributor against whom You assert such claim is referred to as "Participant") alleging that the Participant Software (meaning the Contributor Version where the Participant is a Contributor or the Original Software where the Participant is the Initial Developer) directly or indirectly infringes any patent, then any and all rights granted directly or indirectly to You by such Participant, the Initial Developer (if the Initial Developer is not the Participant) and all Contributors under Sections 2.1 and/or 2.2 of this License shall, upon 60 days notice from Participant terminate prospectively and automatically at the expiration of such 60 day notice period, unless if within such 60 day period You withdraw Your claim with respect to the Participant Software against such Participant either unilaterally or pursuant to a written agreement with Participant. 6.3. In the event of termination under Sections 6.1 or 6.2 above, all end user licenses that have been validly granted by You or any distributor hereunder prior to termination (excluding licenses granted to You by any distributor) shall survive termination.
- 7. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES AND UNDER NO LEGAL THEORY, WHETHER TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL YOU, THE INITIAL DEVELOPER, ANY OTHER CONTRIBUTOR, OR ANY DISTRIBUTOR OF COVERED SOFTWARE, OR ANY SUPPLIER OF ANY OF SUCH PARTIES, BE LIABLE TO ANY PERSON FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY CHARACTER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF GOODWILL, WORK STOPPAGE, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, OR ANY AND ALL OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES OR LOSSES, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY SHALL HAVE BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO LIABILITY FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY RESULTING FROM SUCH PARTY'S NEGLIGENCE TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE LAW PROHIBITS SUCH LIMITATION. SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THIS EXCLUSION AND LIMITATION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.
- 8. U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS. The Covered Software is a "commercial item," as that term is defined in 48 C.F.R. 2.101 (Oct. 1995), consisting of "commercial computer software" (as that term is defined at 48 C.F.R. ¤ 252.227-7014(a)(1)) and "commercial computer software documentation" as such terms are used in 48 C.F.R. 12.212 (Sept. 1995). Consistent with 48 C.F.R. 12.212 and 48 C.F.R. 227.7202-1 through 227.7202-4 (June 1995), all U.S. Government End Users acquire Covered Software with only those rights set forth herein. This U.S. Government Rights clause is in lieu of, and supersedes, any other FAR, DFAR, or other clause or provision that addresses Government rights in computer software under this License.

#### 9. MISCELLANEOUS.

This License represents the complete agreement concerning subject matter hereof. If any provision of this License is held to be unenforceable, such provision shall be reformed only to the extent necessary to make it enforceable.

This License shall be governed by the law of the jurisdiction specified in a notice contained within the Original Software (except to the extent applicable law, if any, provides otherwise), excluding such jurisdiction's conflict-of-law provisions.

Any litigation relating to this License shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the courts located in the jurisdiction and venue specified in a notice contained within the Original Software, with the losing party responsible for costs, including, without limitation, court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses.

The application of the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods is expressly excluded. Any law or regulation which provides that the language of a contract shall be construed against the drafter shall not apply to this License.

You agree that You alone are responsible for compliance with the United States export administration regulations (and the export control laws and regulation of any other countries) when You use, distribute or otherwise make available any Covered Software.

#### 10. RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLAIMS.

As between Initial Developer and the Contributors, each party is responsible for claims and damages arising, directly or indirectly, out of its utilization of rights under this License and You agree to work with Initial Developer and Contributors to distribute such responsibility on an equitable basis. Nothing herein is intended or shall be deemed to constitute any admission of liability.

#### **CPAN License**

This program contains third-party code from the Comprehensive Perl Archive Network ("CPAN"), Under the terms of the CPAN license, Oracle is required to provide the following notices. Note, however, that the Oracle program license that accompanied this product determines your right to use the Oracle program, including the CPAN software, and the terms contained in the following notices do not change those rights. You may obtain copies of the original source code for the CPAN modules at the following site: http://www.cpan.org/

#### JacORB License

This product must be downloaded by the customer; see http://www.jacorb.org/

You are receiving a copy of a derivative work of JacOrb v3 in the MSS\_idl.jar in the Network Integrity MSS Integration Cartridge. The terms of the Oracle license do NOT apply to the JacOrb v3 derivative work; it is licensed under the following license, separately from the Oracle programs you receive. If you do not wish to use the JacORB derivative work, you may extend the Network Integrity MSS Integration Cartridge to use a different ORB.

GNU LESSER GENERAL PUBLIC LICENSE Version 2.1, February 1999 Copyright (C) 1991, 1999 Free Software Foundation, Inc. 59 Temple Place, Suite 330, Boston, MA 02111-1307 USA

Everyone is permitted to copy and distribute verbatim copies of this license document, but changing it is not allowed. [This is the first released version of the Lesser GPL. It also counts as the successor of the GNU Library Public License, version 2, hence the version number 2.1.]

#### **Preamble**

The licenses for most software are designed to take away your freedom to share and change it. By contrast, the GNU General Public Licenses are intended to guarantee your freedom to share and change free software—to make sure the software is free for all its users. This license, the Lesser General Public License, applies to some specially designated software packages—typically libraries—of the Free Software Foundation and other authors who decide to use it. You can use it too, but we suggest you first think carefully about whether this license or the ordinary General Public License is the better strategy to use in any particular case, based on the explanations below. When we speak of free software, we are referring to freedom of use, not price.

Our General Public Licenses are designed to make sure that you have the freedom to distribute copies of free software (and charge for this service if you wish); that you receive source code or can get it if you want it: that you can change the software and use pieces of it in new free programs; and that you are informed that you can do these things.

To protect your rights, we need to make restrictions that forbid distributors to deny you these rights or to ask you to surrender these rights. These restrictions translate to certain responsibilities for you if you distribute copies of the library or if you modify it. For example, if you distribute copies of the library, whether gratis or for a fee, you must give the recipients all the rights that we gave you. You must make sure that they, too, receive or can get the source code. If you link other code with the library, you must provide complete object files to the recipients, so that they can relink them with the library after making changes to the library and recompiling it. And you must show them these terms so they know their rights. We protect your rights with a two-step method: (1) we copyright the library, and (2) we offer you this license, which gives you legal permission to copy, distribute and/or modify the library. To protect each distributor, we want to make it very clear that there is no warranty for the free library. Also, if the library is modified by someone else and passed on, the recipients should know that what they have is not the original version, so that the original author's reputation will not be affected by problems that might be introduced by others.

Finally, software patents pose a constant threat to the existence of any free program. We wish to make sure that a company cannot effectively restrict the users of a free program by obtaining a restrictive license from a patent holder. Therefore, we insist that any patent license obtained for a version of the library must be consistent with the full freedom of use specified in this license.

Most GNU software, including some libraries, is covered by the ordinary GNU General Public License. This license, the GNU Lesser General Public License, applies to certain designated libraries, and is quite different from the ordinary General Public License. We use this license for certain libraries in order to permit linking those libraries into non-free programs. When a program is linked with a library, whether statically or using a shared library, the combination of the two is legally speaking a combined work, a derivative of the original library. The ordinary General Public License therefore permits such linking only if the entire combination fits its criteria of freedom. The Lesser General Public License permits more lax criteria for linking other code with the library. We call this license the "Lesser" General Public License because it does Less to protect the user's freedom than the ordinary General Public License. It also provides other free software developers Less of an advantage over competing non-free programs. These disadvantages are the reason we use the ordinary General Public License for many libraries. However, the Lesser license provides advantages in certain special circumstances. For example, on rare occasions, there may be a special need to encourage the widest possible use of a certain library, so that it becomes a de-facto standard. To achieve this, non-free programs must be allowed to use the library. A more frequent case is that a free library does the same job as widely used non-free libraries. In this case, there is little to gain by limiting the free library to free software only, so we use the Lesser General Public License. In other cases, permission to use a particular library in non-free programs enables a greater number of people to use a large body of free software. For example, permission to use the GNU C Library in non-free programs enables many more people to use the whole GNU operating system, as well as its variant, the GNU/Linux operating system. Although the Lesser General Public License is Less protective of the users' freedom, it does ensure that the user of a program that is linked with the Library has the freedom and the wherewithal to run that program using a modified version of the Library.

The precise terms and conditions for copying, distribution and modification follow. Pay close attention to the difference between a "work based on the library" and a "work that uses the library". The former contains code derived from the library, whereas the latter must be combined with the library in order to run.

GNU LESSER GENERAL PUBLIC LICENSE TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR COPYING, DISTRIBUTION AND MODIFICATION 0.

This License Agreement applies to any software library or other program which contains a notice placed by the copyright holder or other authorized party saying it may be distributed under the terms of this Lesser General Public License (also called "this License").

Each licensee is addressed as "you".

A "library" means a collection of software functions and/or data prepared so as to be conveniently linked with application programs (which use some of those functions and data) to form executables.

The "Library", below, refers to any such software library or work which has been distributed under these terms.

A "work based on the Library" means either the Library or any derivative work under copyright law: that is to say, a work containing the Library or a portion of it, either verbatim or with modifications and/or translated straightforwardly into another language. (Hereinafter, translation is included without limitation in the term "modification".)

"Source code" for a work means the preferred form of the work for making modifications to it. For a library. complete source code means all the source code for all modules it contains, plus any associated interface definition files, plus the scripts used to control compilation and installation of the library. Activities other than copying, distribution and modification are not covered by this License; they are outside its scope. The act of running a program using the Library is not restricted, and output from such a program is covered only if its contents constitute a work based on the Library (independent of the use of the Library in a tool for writing it). Whether that is true depends on what the Library does and what the program that uses the Library does.

- You may copy and distribute verbatim copies of the Library's complete source code as you receive it, in any medium, provided that you conspicuously and appropriately publish on each copy an appropriate copyright notice and disclaimer of warranty; keep intact all the notices that refer to this License and to the absence of any warranty; and distribute a copy of this License along with the Library. You may charge a fee for the physical act of transferring a copy, and you may at your option offer warranty protection in exchange for a fee.
- 2. You may modify your copy or copies of the Library or any portion of it, thus forming a work based on the Library, and copy and distribute such modifications or work under the terms of Section 1 above, provided that you also meet all of these conditions: a) The modified work must itself be a software library. b) You must cause the files modified to carry prominent notices stating that you changed the files and the date of any change, c) You must cause the whole of the work to be licensed at no charge to all third parties under the terms of this License. d) If a facility in the modified Library refers to a function or a table of data to be supplied by an application program that uses the facility, other than as an argument passed when the facility is invoked, then you must make a good faith effort to ensure that, in the event an application does not supply such function or table, the facility still operates, and performs whatever part of its purpose remains meaningful. (For example, a function in a library to compute square roots has a purpose that is entirely well-defined independent of the application.

Therefore, Subsection 2d requires that any application-supplied function or table used by this function must be optional: if the application does not supply it, the square root function must still compute square roots.) These requirements apply to the modified work as a whole. If identifiable sections of that work are not derived from the Library, and can be reasonably considered independent and separate works in themselves, then this License, and its terms, do not apply to those sections when you distribute them as separate works. But when you distribute the same sections as part of a whole which is a work based on the Library, the distribution of the whole must be on the terms of this License, whose permissions for other licensees extend to the entire whole, and thus to each and every part regardless of who wrote it. Thus, it is not the intent of this section to claim rights or contest your rights to work written entirely by you; rather, the intent is to exercise the right to control the distribution of derivative or collective works based on the Library. In addition, mere aggregation of another work not based on the Library with the Library (or with a work based on the Library) on a volume of a storage or distribution medium does not bring the other work under the scope of this License.

3. You may opt to apply the terms of the ordinary GNU General Public License instead of this License to a given copy of the Library. To do this, you must alter all the notices that refer to this License, so that they refer to the ordinary GNU General Public License, version 2, instead of to this License. (If a newer version than version 2 of the ordinary GNU General Public License has appeared, then you can specify that version instead if you wish.) Do not make any other change in these notices. Once this change is made in a given copy, it is irreversible for that copy, so the ordinary GNU General Public License applies to all subsequent copies and derivative works made from that copy. This option is useful when you wish to copy part of the code of the Library into a program that is not a library.

- 4. You may copy and distribute the Library (or a portion or derivative of it, under Section 2) in object code or executable form under the terms of Sections 1 and 2 above provided that you accompany it with the complete corresponding machine-readable source code, which must be distributed under the terms of Sections 1 and 2 above on a medium customarily used for software interchange. If distribution of object code is made by offering access to copy from a designated place, then offering equivalent access to copy the source code from the same place satisfies the requirement to distribute the source code, even though third parties are not compelled to copy the source along with the object code.
- 5. A program that contains no derivative of any portion of the Library, but is designed to work with the Library by being compiled or linked with it, is called a "work that uses the Library". Such a work, in isolation, is not a derivative work of the Library, and therefore falls outside the scope of this License. However, linking a "work that uses the Library" with the Library creates an executable that is a derivative of the Library (because it contains portions of the Library), rather than a "work that uses the library". The executable is therefore covered by this License. Section 6 states terms for distribution of such executables. When a "work that uses the Library" uses material from a header file that is part of the Library, the object code for the work may be a derivative work of the Library even though the source code is not. Whether this is true is especially significant if the work can be linked without the Library, or if the work is itself a library. The threshold for this to be true is not precisely defined by law.

If such an object file uses only numerical parameters, data structure layouts and accessors, and small macros and small inline functions (ten lines or less in length), then the use of the object file is unrestricted, regardless of whether it is legally a derivative work. (Executables containing this object code plus portions of the Library will still fall under Section 6.) Otherwise, if the work is a derivative of the Library, you may distribute the object code for the work under the terms of Section 6. Any executables containing that work also fall under Section 6, whether or not they are linked directly with the Library itself.

6. As an exception to the Sections above, you may also combine or link a "work that uses the Library" with the Library to produce a work containing portions of the Library, and distribute that work under terms of your choice, provided that the terms permit modification of the work for the customer's own use and reverse engineering for debugging such modifications. You must give prominent notice with each copy of the work that the Library is used in it and that the Library and its use are covered by this License. You must supply a copy of this License. If the work during execution displays copyright notices, you must include the copyright notice for the Library among them, as well as a reference directing the user to the copy of this License. Also, you must do one of these things: a) Accompany the work with the complete corresponding machine-readable source code for the Library including whatever changes were used in the work (which must be distributed under Sections 1 and 2 above); and, if the work is an executable linked with the Library, with the complete machine-readable "work that uses the Library", as object code and/or source code, so that the user can modify the Library and then relink to produce a modified executable containing the modified Library. (It is understood that the user who changes the contents of definitions files in the Library will not necessarily be able to recompile the application to use the modified definitions.) b) Use a suitable shared library mechanism for linking with the Library. A suitable mechanism is one that (1) uses at run time a copy of the library already present on the user's computer system, rather than copying library functions into the executable, and (2) will operate properly with a modified version of the library, if the user installs one, as long as the modified version is interface-compatible with the version that the work was made with. c) Accompany the work with a written offer, valid for at least three years, to give the same user the materials specified in Subsection 6a, above, for a charge no more than the cost of performing this distribution. d) If distribution of the work is made by offering access to copy from a designated place, offer equivalent access to copy the above specified materials from the same place. e) Verify that the user has already received a copy of these materials or that you have already sent this user a copy.

For an executable, the required form of the "work that uses the Library" must include any data and utility programs needed for reproducing the executable from it. However, as a special exception, the materials to be distributed need not include anything that is normally distributed (in either source or binary form) with the major components (compiler, kernel, and so on) of the operating system on which the executable runs, unless that component itself accompanies the executable. It may happen that this requirement contradicts the license restrictions of other proprietary libraries that do not normally accompany the operating system. Such a contradiction means you cannot use both them and the Library together in an executable that you distribute.

- 7. You may place library facilities that are a work based on the Library side-by-side in a single library together with other library facilities not covered by this License, and distribute such a combined library, provided that the separate distribution of the work based on the Library and of the other library facilities is otherwise permitted, and provided that you do these two things: a) Accompany the combined library with a copy of the same work based on the Library, uncombined with any other library facilities. This must be distributed under the terms of the Sections above. b) Give prominent notice with the combined library of the fact that part of it is a work based on the Library, and explaining where to find the accompanying uncombined form of the same work.
- 8. You may not copy, modify, sublicense, link with, or distribute the Library except as expressly provided under this License. Any attempt otherwise to copy, modify, sublicense, link with, or distribute the Library is void, and will automatically terminate your rights under this License. However, parties who have received copies, or rights, from you under this License will not have their licenses terminated so long as such parties remain in full compliance.
- 9. You are not required to accept this License, since you have not signed it. However, nothing else grants you permission to modify or distribute the Library or its derivative works. These actions are prohibited by law if you do not accept this License. Therefore, by modifying or distributing the Library (or any work based on the Library), you indicate your acceptance of this License to do so, and all its terms and conditions for copying, distributing or modifying the Library or works based on it.
- 10. Each time you redistribute the Library (or any work based on the Library), the recipient automatically receives a license from the original licensor to copy, distribute, link with or modify the Library subject to these terms and conditions. You may not impose any further restrictions on the recipients' exercise of the rights granted herein. You are not responsible for enforcing compliance by third parties with this License.
- 11. If, as a consequence of a court judgment or allegation of patent infringement or for any other reason (not limited to patent issues), conditions are imposed on you (whether by court order, agreement or otherwise) that contradict the conditions of this License, they do not excuse you from the conditions of this License. If you cannot distribute so as to satisfy simultaneously your obligations under this License and any other pertinent obligations, then as a consequence you may not distribute the Library at all. For example, if a patent license would not permit royalty-free redistribution of the Library by all those who receive copies directly or indirectly through you, then the only way you could satisfy both it and this License would be to refrain entirely from distribution of the Library. If any portion of this section is held invalid or unenforceable under any particular circumstance, the balance of the section is intended to apply, and the section as a whole is intended to apply in other circumstances. It is not the purpose of this section to induce you to infringe any patents or other property right claims or to contest validity of any such claims; this section has the sole purpose of protecting the integrity of the free software distribution system which is implemented by public license practices. Many people have made generous contributions to the wide range of software distributed through that system in reliance on consistent application of that system; it is up to the author/donor to decide if he or she is willing to distribute software through any other system and a licensee cannot impose that choice. This section is intended to make thoroughly clear what is believed to be a consequence of the rest of this License.
- 12. If the distribution and/or use of the Library is restricted in certain countries either by patents or by copyrighted interfaces, the original copyright holder who places the Library under this License may add an explicit geographical distribution limitation excluding those countries, so that distribution is permitted only in or among countries not thus excluded. In such case, this License incorporates the limitation as if written in the body of this License.

- 13. The Free Software Foundation may publish revised and/or new versions of the Lesser General Public License from time to time. Such new versions will be similar in spirit to the present version, but may differ in detail to address new problems or concerns. Each version is given a distinguishing version number. If the Library specifies a version number of this License which applies to it and "any later version", you have the option of following the terms and conditions either of that version or of any later version published by the Free Software Foundation. If the Library does not specify a license version number, you may choose any version ever published by the Free Software Foundation.
- 14. If you wish to incorporate parts of the Library into other free programs whose distribution conditions are incompatible with these, write to the author to ask for permission. For software which is copyrighted by the Free Software Foundation, write to the Free Software Foundation; we sometimes make exceptions for this. Our decision will be guided by the two goals of preserving the free status of all derivatives of our free software and of promoting the sharing and reuse of software generally.
- 15. NO WARRANTY. BECAUSE THE LIBRARY IS LICENSED FREE OF CHARGE, THERE IS NO WARRANTY FOR THE LIBRARY, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. EXCEPT WHEN OTHERWISE STATED IN WRITING THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND/OR OTHER PARTIES PROVIDE THE LIBRARY "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO THE QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE OF THE LIBRARY IS WITH YOU. SHOULD THE LIBRARY PROVE DEFECTIVE, YOU ASSUME THE COST OF ALL NECESSARY SERVICING, REPAIR OR CORRECTION. 16. IN NO EVENT UNLESS REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW OR AGREED TO IN WRITING WILL ANY COPYRIGHT HOLDER, OR ANY OTHER PARTY WHO MAY MODIFY AND/OR REDISTRIBUTE THE LIBRARY AS PERMITTED ABOVE, BE LIABLE TO YOU FOR DAMAGES, INCLUDING ANY GENERAL, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE LIBRARY (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOSS OF DATA OR DATA BEING RENDERED INACCURATE OR LOSSES SUSTAINED BY YOU OR THIRD PARTIES OR A FAILURE OF THE LIBRARY TO OPERATE WITH ANY OTHER SOFTWARE), EVEN IF SUCH HOLDER OR OTHER PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

#### **JCraft License**

Copyright (c) 2002-2012 Atsuhiko Yamanaka, JCraft, Inc.

All rights reserved.

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- 2. Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- 3. The names of the authors may not be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL JCRAFT, INC. OR ANY CONTRIBUTORS TO THIS SOFTWARE BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS: OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

### The Internet Society License

Copyright (C) The Internet Society (1999). All Rights Reserved.

This document and translations of it may be copied and furnished to others, and derivative works that comment on or otherwise explain it or assist in its implementation may be prepared, copied, published and distributed, in whole or in part, without restriction of any kind, provided that the above copyright notice and this paragraph are included on all such copies and derivative works. However, this document itself may not be modified in any way, such as by removing the copyright notice or references to the Internet Society or other Internet organizations, except as needed for the purpose of developing Internet standards in which case the procedures for copyrights defined in the Internet Standards process must be followed, or as required to translate it into languages other than English.

The limited permissions granted above are perpetual and will not be revoked by the Internet Society or its successors or assigns.

This document and the information contained herein is provided on an "AS IS" basis and THE INTERNET SOCIETY AND THE INTERNET ENGINEERING TASK FORCE DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES. EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY THAT THE USE OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN WILL NOT INFRINGE ANY RIGHTS OR ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.